
 
 

CITY OF SEASIDE  
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 Monday, April 8, 2024 
 
To provide public comment for City Council meetings, participants should register prior to the 
meeting. Please complete the form linked below to offer public comment at an upcoming City Council 
meeting. You may provide public comment using the following methods: 
 

1. In-person (meetings are held at Seaside City Hall, 989 Broadway, Seaside, OR) 
2. Via Zoom web conference or telephone (obtain link and register at cityofseaside.us)  
3. Written comments may be submitted using this form, via e-mail 

to publiccomment@cityofseaside.us or in person at City Hall (989 Broadway, Seaside, OR). 
 

If you are providing public comments in person or via Zoom, please keep in mind your comments will 
be limited to three (3) minutes. If your comments are longer than three (3) minutes, please submit 
your comment in writing and utilize your three (3) minutes to summarize your written document. 
Please review the Public Comment Rules of Conduct prior to the meeting.  

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION: 5:00 PM 
 

1. Discussion – Site Amendments to Homeless Camp {40 min} 
 

2. Discussion Future City Council Agenda Items {10 min}  
  

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 PM 

 
1. Call To Order 
 
2. Pledge Of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Approval Of Agenda 
 
5. Proclamation:  

 
 

A. Proclamation – National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week 
 

B.  Proclamation – National Library Week 
 

6. Recognition: 
 
No recognitions 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/webforms/public-comment-submission-or-registration
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/webforms/public-comment-submission-or-registration
mailto:publiccomment@cityofseaside.us
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/pages/how-connect


 
 
 

7. Public Comments  
 
Members of the public may use this time to provide comments to the City Council on 
items that are not scheduled on this agenda for a public hearing or public comment. 
Speaking time is limited to three minutes. 
 

8. Declaration Of Potential Conflict of Interest 
 
9. Consent Agenda 

 
A. Payment of the bills - $892,812.83 
 
B. Approval of minutes – March 25, 2024 
 

10. Reports And Presentations: 
 
 

A. Annual Report Seaside Police Department. 
 

B. Annual Report Seaside Finance Department  
 

11. City of Seaside Boards, Commissions, And Committees  
 

No items for boards, commissions, and committees 
  
12. Unfinished Business  

 
 

A. Ordinance 2024-05 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Amending 
Chapter 30: City Council, Section 30.01 Council Meetings, of the Code of 
Ordinances Seaside.  
 Open Public Hearing 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Council Comments 
 Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-05 third reading by title only. 
 Motion to Adopt and Roll Call Vote.  

 
13. New Business  

 
 

A. Liquor License Application – The Cookie Jar LLC., 8 N. Holladay Drive.   
 

B. Public Hearing School District Appeal of Planning Commission’s Decision.  
 Open Public Hearing  
 Close Public Hearing  
 Council Comments 
 

C. Resolution #4037 – A Resolution of Intent to Vacate Certain Property in the 
City of Seaside, Oregon, Directing the City Manager to give Public Notice and 
Set a Date of Hearing.  

 

 Open Public Comments 
 Close Public Comments 
 Council Comments 

 Motion to Read Resolution by Title Only – All in Favor and Opposed 
 Motion to Adopt 
 

14. Comments From City Staff 
 
15. Comments From the City Council 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 

16. Executive Session: Recess into Executive Session  
 

 

In accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(d) regarding conducting deliberations with 
persons designated to carry on labor negotiations.  
 
In accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(f) regarding consideration of information or 
records that are exempt from disclosure by law, including written advice from 
attorney. 
 

17. Reconvene into Regular Session:   
 

In accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(d) regarding conducting deliberations with 
persons designated to carry on labor negotiations.   
 
City Council action if any regarding executive session: 
 
In accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(f) regarding consideration of information or 
records that are exempt from disclosure by law, including written advice from 
attorney.  

 

City Council action if any regarding executive session: 
 

18. Adjournment  
 
 
Complete copies of the Current Council meeting Agenda, Packets, and Minutes can be viewed at:  
www.cityofseaside.us.  
 

All meetings other than executive sessions are open to the public. When appropriate, any public 
member desiring to address the Council may be recognized by the presiding officer. Remarks are 
limited to the question under discussion except during public comment. This meeting is handicapped 
accessible. Please let us know at 503.738.5511 if you will need any special accommodation to 
participate in this meeting. 

http://www.cityofseaside.us/


 

 
 

(503) 738-5511 
cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway 
Seaside, OR 97138 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 

 Whereas, emergencies can occur at any time that require police, fire, or emergency 
medical services; and  
 
 Whereas, when an emergency occurs the prompt response of police officers, 
firefighters, and paramedics is critical to the protection of life and preservation of property; 
and   
 
 Whereas, the safety of our police officers and firefighters is dependent upon the 
quality and accuracy of information obtained from citizens who telephone the Seaside 
Police Department Communications Center; and   
 

Whereas, Public Safety Telecommunicators are the single vital link for our police 
officers, firefighters and emergency medical personnel by monitoring their activities by 
radio, providing them information and ensuring their safety; and   
 
 Whereas, Public Safety Telecommunicators of the Seaside Police Department 
Communications Center have contributed substantially to the apprehension of criminals, 
suppression of fires and treatment of patients; and  
 
 Whereas, each dispatcher has exhibited compassion, understanding and 
professionalism during the performance of their job in the past year.  
 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Steve Wright, Mayor of the City of Seaside, in the 
State of Oregon, do hereby proclaim the week of April 14-20, 2024, as 
 
 

NATIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATORS WEEK 
 
 

in Seaside, in honor of the men and women whose diligence and professionalism keep our 
city and citizens safe. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City 
of Seaside to be affixed this 8th day of April, 2024. 
 
             
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR  
 



 

 
 

(503) 738-5511 
cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway 
Seaside, OR 97138 

PROCLAMATION 
 

 Whereas, libraries provide the opportunity for everyone to pursue their passions and 
engage in lifelong learning, allowing them to live their best life; and  

 Whereas, libraries have long served as trusted institutions for all members of the 
community regardless of race, ethnicity, creed, ability, sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
socio-economic status; and 

 Whereas, libraries strive to develop and maintain programs and collections that are as 
diverse as the populations they serve and ensure equity of access for all; and 

 Whereas, libraries adapt to the ever-changing needs of their communities, continually 
expanding their collections, services, and partnerships; and 

 Whereas, libraries play a critical role in the economic vitality of communities by 
providing internet and technology access, literacy skills, and support for job seekers, small 
businesses, and entrepreneurs; and 

 Whereas, libraries are accessible and inclusive places that promote a sense of local 
connection, advancing understanding, civic engagement, and shared community goals; and 

Whereas, libraries are cornerstones of democracy, promoting the free exchange of 
information and ideas for all; and 

 Whereas, libraries, librarians, and library workers are joining library supporters and 
advocates across the nation to celebrate National Library Week. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I Steve Wright, Mayor of the City of Seaside, in the State of 
Oregon, do hereby proclaim the week of April 7-13, 2024, as  
 

NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK 
 
and during this week, encourage all residents to visit their library to explore the wealth of 
resources available.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and caused to be affixed the Seal of the 

City of Seaside, Oregon to be affixed on this 8th day of April, 2024.   

 

                                                                      __________________________________ 
     STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 



  

 

1 
 

CITY OF SEASIDE CITY COUNCIL 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

City Hall, 989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 
Monday, March 25, 2024  

 

Work Session 5:00 PM 

1. City of Seaside Audit Report  
 

 

Mayor Wright opened the work session to discuss the City of Seaside Audit Report. 

 

Rick Proulx, Kern and Thompson LLC., presented the City of Seaside June 30, 2023, 

Financial Reports to the City Council.  

 

1. City Council Meeting 6:00 PM 
 

2. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call 
.   

Council Members P/A 

Seth Morrisey  A 
Steve Dillard  P 
Steve Wright, Mayor P 

Tita Montero  P 
David Posalski, Council President P 
Tom Horning P 

Randy Frank (Zoom)               P 
 

Staff Members  
Spencer Kyle, City Manager Jordan Sprague, Code Compliance 

Official in Community Development 
Kim Jordan, City Recorder Guy Knight, Police Lieutenant 

Zach Fleck, Finance Director  
 

Visitors in Chambers 
(attendance sheet) 

Visitors on Zoom 

Jackie Sturman  

Judy Hixson  
Terry Sturman  
Brian Taylor  

Amorie Taylor  
Eric Jones  

 

 

4. Approval of Agenda  
 

Mayor Wright asked for approval for the amended agenda, removing item 16 and 17, 

Executive Session from the agenda. 

Motion: Move to approve the amended agenda.  

Moved: Posalski 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AM7PHKTP3ws#t=2s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AM7PHKTP3ws#t=7s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=17m36s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=20m55s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=21m24s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=21m53s


  

 

2 
 

Seconded: Montero 

Ayes: Wright, Frank, Dillard, Posalski, 
Montero, Horning   

Nays:  
0 

Absent:  
1 
Morrisey   

Recused: 
0  

Passed: 6/0 
 

 

5. Proclamation 
 

A. Sexual Assault Awareness/Action Month 
 

Eric Jones, The Harbor NW, commented on the Proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness 
Month in April, adding that Sexual Assault Awareness Month is a time dedicated to shedding 
light on the issue of sexual assault and to stand in solidarity with survivors to advocate for 
justice and renew the commitment to prevent sexual violence.   
 
Council President Posalski read the proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness/Action Month 

 
B. Volunteer Recognition Month  
 
Mayor Wright commented on volunteerism in Seaside and read the proclamation for Volunteer 
Recognition Month 

 

 

6. Recognition 
 

There was no recognition.  
  

7. Public Comments (time is limited to 3 minute’s)  
 

Jackie Sturman, Seaside, commented on the North Forty property and said that she would 

like to see a small area be fenced off for a dog park.  

City Manager Kyle commented on a survey being conducted by the Parks Committee to 
gather community feedback on what type of park should be located at the North Forty 
Property. The survey is on the City of Seaside website and the public is encouraged to 
identify their preferences for that park. 
   

8. Declaration of Potential Conflict of Interest 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Council President Posalski announced a conflict of interest with agenda items 13b and 13c, as 

he is associated with the Seaside Food Forest. 

9. Consent Agenda 
 

Motion: Move to accept the consent agenda.       

Council Members Y/N 

Steve Wright, Mayor N 
Tom Horning N 
Randy Frank N 

Seth Morrisey N 
Steve Dillard N 

David Posalski, President Y 
Tita Montero N 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=22m55s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=29m48s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=32m57s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=33m15s


  

 

3 
 

Moved: Frank 

Seconded: Dillard 
Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Frank, Posalski, 

Montero, Horning  
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
1 
Morrisey 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 6/0 
 

10. Reports and Presentations  
 

There were no reports and presentations.  
   

11. City of Seaside boards, commissions, and committees  
 

There were no board, commission, or committee items. 

12. Unfinished Business 
 

There was no unfinished business.  

13. New Business 
 

A. Acceptance of City of Seaside Audit Report.   

Mayor Wright introduced Rick Proulx for the City of Seaside Audit Report.   

Rick Proulx, Kern and Thompson LLC., updated the City Council on the completed audit of 
the City’s financial statements for fiscal year 2023. He is happy to report an unmodified 
opinion, a clean audit report that the City’s finances are in good condition.  
 
Motion: Move to approve the City of Seaside accept the audit reports for the City of 

Seaside and its Urban Renewal components and that they be filed with the 
City Recorder.    

Moved: Posalski 
Seconded: Montero 

Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Frank, Posalski, 
Montero, Horning  

Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
1 
Morrisey 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 6/0 
 

B. Intergovernmental Agreement for the Relocation of the Community Gardens.  
 

 

City Manager Kyle introduced the City Council to the Intergovernmental Agreement 

between the Seaside School District and Sunset Empire Park & Recreation for the 

relocation of the community gardens.  
 

Motion: Move to authorize the City Manager to sign the Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the relocation of the Community Gardens as attached or as 
amended, if the City Manager approves of any amendments.    

Moved: Horning 
Seconded: Dillard 

Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Frank, Montero, 
Horning  

Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
1 
Morrisey 

Recused:  
1  
Posalski 

Passed: 5/0 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=33m46s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=33m51s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=36m2s


  

 

4 
 

 

C. Seaside Community Food Forest Donation Request for Community Garden Allocated 

Budget Funds. 
 

 

City Manager Kyle updated the City Council on the approved funding for the Seaside 

Food Forest.David Posalski commented that the Seaside Food Forest is a non-profit that 

came to the Budget Committee in 2023 and was awarded $3,000. The original amount 

asked for was $15,000 for the Community Gardens and Mr. Posalski is asking to receive 

the original amount to fund the new location at the Community Gardens.    

 

The City Council expressed concern that approving an amount greater than the amount 

awarded would set a precedent for future non-profit requests for an increase in funding.  
 

Motion: Move to approve the funding request to Seaside Food Forest in the amount 
of $3,000 for fiscal year 2023-2024 contingent upon the City entering into 
an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Seaside School District and 
Sunset Empire Park and Recreation District.     

Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Dillard 

Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Frank, Posalski, 
Montero, Horning  

Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
1 
Morrisey 

Recused:  
1  
Posalski 

Passed: 5/0 

 

D. Ordinance 2024-05 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Amending Chapter 30: 

City Council, Section 30.01 Council Meetings, of the Code of Ordinances Seaside.  
 
 

City Manager Kyle introduced Ordinance 2024-05 which specifies that the regular 

meetings of the City Council will be conducted the 2nd and 4th Monday’s at 6:00 PM, and 

there was language added that would recognize the regular holding of work sessions.  

 

Mayor Wright opened the public hearing.   
 

Motion: Motion for a first reading of Ordinance 2024-05, by title only.    
Moved: Montero 

Seconded: Dillard 
Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero, Horning 
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
1 
Morrisey 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 6/0 
 

Motion: Motion to have a second reading by title only, Ordinance 2024-05.     
Moved: Posalski 
Seconded: Montero 

Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 
Posalski, Montero, Horning 

Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
1 
Morrisey 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 6/0 

 

14. Comments from City Staff and Partner Organizations 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=48m51s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=48m51s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=1h9m31s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=1h9m31s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=1h13m53s


  

 

5 
 

Police Lieutenant Knight updated the City Council on the construction at the Seaside Police 

Department and thanked the Seaside Police reserves who volunteer their time for the 

department.  Police Lieutenant Knight announced the Citizens Academy starting in April.  

Finance Director Fleck thanked City Hall staff for their help with the audit work.  

City Manager Kyle announced he would be attending the Northwest City/County Managers 

Conference at the Seaside Convention Center.  
   

15. Comments from City Council 
 

Councilor Frank announced the Airport Committee meeting.   

Councilor Horning announced the Parks Advisory Committee meeting and survey for the 

North 40 Park Plan.  

Councilor Montero commented on a meeting she attended with FEMA regarding vertical 

evacuation structures and announced Coffee with a Councilor.  

Mayor Wright announced the Clatsop County Housing meeting and the contacts he has made 

with the sister city in Japan. Mayor Wright announced the Seaside 125th anniversary and the 

History and Hops meeting coming up.   

        

16. Adjourn City Council Meeting 7:26 PM 
 

Approved by Council on: ____________________ 
 
  
Minutes prepared by: _____________________  

   Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
 

____________________________ 
STEVE WRIGHT, Mayor  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=1h19m10s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5uTPeo0Or9w&t=1478s#t=1h26m28s


 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

City of Seaside 
City Council Meeting Staff Report 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2024 
Author:  Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
Department:   City Manager’s Office 
Subject:  City Council Meeting Dates & Times 
Type of Item:  Ordinance 

Request:  
Staff are requesting the City Council have a third reading and motion to adopt the attached 
ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances Seaside, Chapter 30 Administration: City 
Council, Section 30.01 Council Meetings.  The amended ordinance would add the time of 
the City Council meeting to Section 30.01 (A). It also adds language recognizing the regular 
holding of work sessions.  
 
Background: 
The City Council directed staff to update this ordinance to be consistent with the Seaside 
Charter. The current ordinance lacks a time as required by the charter. The Seaside 
Charter for Chapter IV. Council, Section 14. meetings states: The Council shall hold regular 
meetings at least once a month in the City at a time and place which is set by ordinance.  
Meetings of the Council other than regular meetings may be held in accordance with 
procedures prescribed by State law and general ordinance.  The City Council approved the 
first and second reading of the ordinance at the March 25, 2024, City Council meeting.  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The City Council directed staff to update the ordinance for Council meetings. The 
amendment to section 30.01 Council Meetings adds a starting time of 6:00 PM to the 
regular meeting and recognizes that we regularly hold work sessions. The language 
regarding the work session is permissive, means that it does not require the City Council to 
hold a work session, but recognizes that the Council will hold them as needed.  
 
Budget Impact: 
None  
 
Requested Action: 
If the City Council is inclined to approve the ordinance, a Councilor would state: 
 
“I move for a third reading of Ordinance 2024-05 by title only.” 
 
Followed by: 
 
“I move to adopt Ordinance 2024-05 by title only.” 
 
Alternatives: 
If the City Council is not ready to move forward, you may discuss and postpone the third 
and final reading to a future date.  



Page | 2  
 

 
Attachments:  
 Ordinance 2024-05 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON,  
AMENDING CHAPTER 30: CITY COUNCIL,  

SECTION 30.01 COUNCIL MEETINGS,  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES SEASIDE  

 
THE CITY OF SEASIDE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1. Amend Chapter 30 Section 30.01(A) to read: 
 
(A) The City Council shall meet the second and fourth Mondays of each month at 6:00 PM at the 
City Hall building located at 989 Broadway. The City Council may also hold a work session prior 
to the regular meeting, when needed.  
 
(B) The Council may at any regular or special meeting cancel one of the monthly meetings, and/or 
may change the location site. The Mayor, or Council President in the Mayor's absence, may 
cancel one of the monthly meetings in the event of lack of City business, or in case of an 
emergency. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Seaside on this ___ day of __________, 2024. 
 
YEAS:  
NAYS:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:  
 
SUBMITTED to and APPROVED by the Mayor on this ___ day of ___________, 2024. 
 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Spencer Kyle, City Manager  



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

City of Seaside 
City Council Meeting Staff Report 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2024 
Author:  Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
Department:   City Manager’s Office  
Subject:  Liquor License Application 
Type of Item:  Recommendation 

Request:  
The Cookie Jar LLC. is requesting approval of a Limited On-Premises Liquor License.   
 
Background: 
The Cookie Jar LLC., is a restaurant offering cookies and treats with a selection of beer and 
wine while dining.  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The Cookie Jar LLC., is a business located at 8 N. Holladay Drive. The business is a new 
outlet and is applying for a limited on-premises liquor license. The owner is Marcus 
Koczenasz-Runkle.  
 
A limited on-premises license allows the company to sell and serve on premises malt 
beverages (beer), wine, and cider.  The Seaside Police Department reviewed the liquor 
application for The Cookie Jar LLC., located at 8 N. Holladay Drive, Seaside, OR.  
 
The Seaside Police Department Review: This license would allow the sales of malt 
beverages (beer), wine, and cider. The Police Department spoke with Marcus who is 
responsible for the location. Neither the Cookie Jar nor Marcus have previously had a 
liquor license. Marcus plans on serving beer and wine and stated the cooler for alcoholic 
drinks would be kept behind the bakery counter, against the north wall, far from reach of 
customers. The Seaside Police Department review of the application did not discover any 
disqualifying information or reason to deny the application.  
 
Budget Impact: 
There is no budget impact.   
 
Requested Action: 
If the City Council is inclined to recommend the liquor license application, a Councilor 
would state:  
 
“I move to recommend approval of the liquor license application for The Cookie Jar LLC.”  
 
Alternatives: 
The City Council, after consideration, may determine whether to make a favorable, 
unfavorable, conditionally favorable or no recommendations to the OLCC.  



Page | 2  
 

If the City Council makes an unfavorable or conditionally favorable recommendation to the 
OLCC regarding any application for liquor license, the recommendation will be based on a 
finding that one or more of the following conditions exist: 
 
1. There is a history or pattern of illegal or disorderly activity on the premises. 
 
2.  There have been disturbances and/or other problems (such as fights, altercations, drug 
dealing by patrons, furnishing alcohol to minors by patrons, public drunkenness, alcohol 
related litter, etc.) related to the exercise of the applicant’s alcohol license privilege and the 
applicant has failed to take reasonable and timely corrective action when notified of these 
problems by the police or the OLCC. 
 
3.  There is a continuing problem of noise from this business disturbing neighbors. 
 
4.  The applicant would be a poor risk for compliance with liquor laws, as indicated by a 
felony conviction, which reflects on the applicant’s ability to be a responsible liquor licensee. 
 
5.  The applicant would be a poor risk for compliance with liquor laws, as indicated by a 
failure to comply with liquor laws. 

 
6.  The applicant has a history of abusing alcohol or other controlled substances and would 
be a poor risk for compliance with liquor laws. 

 
7.  The applicant has made an intentional and materially false statement about a matter 
that reflects on the applicant’s ability to comply with the State’s liquor laws. 

 
8.  An unlicensable person or a party not named as applicant has an ownership interest in 
the business to be licensed. 

 
9.  The applicant has failed to operate as originally proposed to the City Council, the 
original proposal having been a deciding factor in the Council’s favorable recommendation 
to the OLCC. 

 
10.  The applicant has expanded the boundaries of the licensed premises to areas not 
originally considered by the Council and without City and OLCC approval. 

 
11.  The business is located within 500 feet of a school, childcare facility, church, hospital, 
nursing or convalescent care facility, a park or child-oriented recreation facility, or an 
alcohol and other drug treatment facility and there is evidence that the business will 
adversely impact the facility. 
 
Attachments:  

 Seaside Police Department Recommendation  





 

Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 1 - 

 
 
 
APPLICATION(S):  769-24-000021-PLNG – Modification of a 

Conditional Use – Appeal of 769-24-000007 

MEETING DATE:  April 8, 2024 

PUBLIC HEARING:   Yes 

Report Date:    April 3, 2024 

Applicant:   Josh Modin, ZCS Engineering & Architecture 

     Susan Penrod, Seaside School District 

Owner:    Sunset Empire Park and Recreation District  

Location:  1140/1120 Broadway St., Seaside OR 97138 

Major Street Access:  Broadway St. 

Parcel Number(s) & Size: T6-R10-22BB04700 & 4800 Approximately 5 Acres 

Parcel Zoning:   Medium Density Residential (R-2), General Commercial (C-3) 

Adjacent Zoning:  Medium Density Residential (R-2), General Commercial (C-3) 

Current Use of Parcel:  Former Middle School 

Adjacent Uses:   Single-Family Residential, Public Park 

Previous Meetings:  None 

Previous Approvals:   None  

Type of Action:   Quasi-Judicial 

Land Use Authority:  Planning Commission 

Future Routing:  None 

Planner:    Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

 

A. Summary:   

The applicant is appealing the Planning Commission’s decision to their previous 

request to modify their conditions of use. The applicant is requesting the Council 

overturn the Planning Commission's requirements to place 40-foot tall netting along 

the first base line and the requirement to keep the netting on the north fence line up 

year-round.   

 

B. Exhibits:   

 

1. Planning Commission Decision 

2. Applicant Submittals 

   Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the City Council conduct a public hearing on the application, take public 

comments, and review and discuss the request. The City Council should consider the 

applicable review criteria, applicant submittals, public comments, the prior Planning 

Commission decision, and the staff recommendation and determine if there is sufficient 

evidence to overturn the Planning Commission’s decision.  

 

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


 

Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 2 - 

 

Location: 1120/1140 Broadway St., Seaside OR 97138, (T6-R10-22BB04700 &4800) 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


 

Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 3 - 

C. Background:   

This applicant was granted Planning Commission approval for a conditional use to 

install a softball field at the Broadway complex on April 5, 2023. The Planning 

Commission imposed five (5) conditions on the approval that would need to be met in 

order to construct the field. The applicant is requesting an amendment to Condition 5 

which states:  

“Additional safety netting will need to be provided on the west side of the softball 

field to protect pedestrians and the SEPRD building from foul balls or other objects 

leaving the field. The safety netting along the north property line as well as the 

safety netting on the west side of the softball field will need to remain in place 365 

days a year to protect neighboring properties and buildings from balls or objects 

leaving the fields of play.” 

On March 6, 2024, The Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed the 

applicant’s request for a modification to Condition 5 of their conditional us approval. 

The Planning Commission modified the condition to read:  

“The netting following the north fence line is to remain in place 365 days a year to 

protect the neighboring properties. The netting on the west side of the softball field 

is to be 40 feet tall and extend down the first base line to the south end of the 

pitcher’s bullpen. The first base line netting is permitted to be removed from October 

31 to February 1 annually. All netting is permitted to be removed for the duration of 

a significant weather event.”  

D. Required Dates: 

This application was accepted as complete on February 12, 2024. The 120-day decision 

timeframe is June 11, 2024.  

E. Specific Request:  

The applicant is appealing the Planning Commission’s decision to their previous request 

to modify their conditions of use. The applicant is requesting the Council overturn the 

Planning Commission's requirements to place 40-foot tall netting along the first base 

line and the requirement to keep the netting on the north fence line up year-round. The 

applicant has proposed removing the netting during the winter months and only having 

it in place during the spring and summer.  

F. Process:  

This request is being reviewed under Article 6 and Article 10 of the Seaside Zoning 

Ordinance. Article 6 establishes the criteria for conditional uses and Article 10 

establishes the process and procedures that are applicable to this request.  

G. Community Review:  

Notice of this public hearing was published in the Daily Astorian on March 14, 2024. 

Additionally, a mailed notice was sent on March 19, 2024, to all property owners within 

100 feet of the subject property. 

H. Written Comments: 

No comments have been received at the time of this report.  

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


 

Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 4 - 

I. Zoning Ordinance Criteria for a Conditional Use: 

Pursuant to Section 6.031 of the Seaside Zoning Ordinance, all conditional 

use requests must comply with the specific standards in the zone and other 

applicable supplementary provisions in Article 4.  In permitting a new 

conditional use or alteration of an existing conditional use; the Planning 

Commission may impose additional conditions considered necessary to 

protect the best interests of the surrounding area of the city as a whole.  

These conditions may include (but are not limited to) the following:   

1. Increasing the required lot size or yard dimension.  

2. Limiting the height of buildings.  

3. Controlling the location and number of vehicle access points.  

4. Increasing the street width.  

5. Increasing the number of required off-street parking spaces.  

6. Limiting the number, size, location, and lighting of signs.  

7. Requiring diking, fencing, screening, landscaping or other facilities 

to protect adjacent or nearby property.  

8. Designating sites for open space.  

 

J. Recommendation and Alternatives: 

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff has reviewed the above-listed criteria to determine if the netting requirements 

placed on the applicant by the Planning Commission are in compliance with the 

provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Criteria number seven allows the Planning Commission to impose a condition 

“requiring diking, fencing, screening, landscaping or other facilities to protect adjacent 

or nearby property.” The netting requirement for the first base line is intended to 

protect the Sunset Recreation Center building that is, in part, on the same property as 

the softball field not “adjacent or nearby”. The building does not have glass windows 

facing the field that need protection and is primarily made of concrete. Balls leaving 

the field of play are unlikely to damage this structure. 

The Planning Commission’s argument for the first base line fencing is to protect the 

building and pedestrians using the facility from balls leaving the field of play. 

Pedestrians entering the vicinity of an active sports complex or sports field should be 

aware of the hazards of recreating in that area. Actively used sports fields often have 

balls leaving the field of play as that is the nature of any game, whether it be football, 

baseball, softball, or soccer. All of the aforementioned sports are active within this 

complex throughout the spring, summer, and fall.  

Staff agrees that reasonable measures should be taken by the operator of this facility 

to protect the neighboring properties. The netting placement along the north property 

line is appropriate as the residential properties in that immediate area should be 

protected from balls leaving the field of play. Netting placement along the first base 

line would only protect a concrete building that is operated as part of the sports 

complex and the operator (SEPRD) has not provided comment as to the necessity to 

protect that side of their building. The protection of persons in the vicinity of the field 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


 

Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 5 - 

is unnecessary as spectators of a game or persons recreating in the vicinity should 

accept a reasonable amount of risk and should have an implied awareness of the types 

of activities that surround a softball field including softballs leaving the field of play.  

The Planning Commission’s condition requiring the nets on the north property line to 

be in place 365 days a year is unreasonable as the use of these fields significantly 

lessens throughout the winter. Outdoor organized sports such as softball do not take 

place during the winter months. While it is true other members of the public may use 

the facility while not in use by the school district or other sports organizations, the 

majority of the issue of balls leaving the field of play occurs during organized practices 

or games. 

The climate in Seaside has historically seen higher wind speeds during the winter 

months. The applicant’s argument that the force from the higher wind speeds can 

deteriorate the netting system thus making it costly for the owners to maintain is 

valid. The below graph shows that Seaside experiences higher average daily wind and 

higher wind gusts from October to February than during the late spring and summer 

months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Requirements to maintain netting along the north property line should be reasonable 

to protect the neighboring property owners and be in place during the months of the 

highest use of the field. The nets should not be in place during months of lower field 

use when the wind force is at its yearly peak.  

Staff recommends the City Council amend the Planning Commission’s condition to 

state: 

Condition 5: “Netting is required along the north property line and is to remain in 

place from March 1 to October 31 of each year unless organized sports utilizing the 

softball field start prior to or extend beyond that time frame.”  

Staff recommends the City Council remove the requirement for the first base line 

netting.   

 

The information in this report and the recommendations of staff are not binding on 

the City Council and may be altered or amended during the public hearing. 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

 

APPLICATION(S):   769-24-000007-PLNG – Conditional Use 

MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2024 

MAILED DATE:   March 7, 2024 

 

Applicant:    Josh Modin, ZCS Engineering & Architecture 

     Susan Penrod, Seaside School District 

Owner:    Sunset Empire Park and Recreation District 

Location: 1140/1120 Broadway St., Seaside OR 97138 (6-10-22BB-

04700 & 4800) 

Staff Contact: Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

Request Summary: 

A conditional use request by Seaside School District (SSD) to modify Condition 5 of their prior 

approval which, if approved, will allow them to remove the netting on the west side (first base line) of 

the softball field and not keep the nets up year-round. 

Planning Commission Decision: 

On March 5, 2024, the Seaside Planning Commission did not approve the applicant’s request for a full 

modification of Condition 5. The Planning Commission’s modification is explained below.  

Appeal Provisions: 

The Planning Commission’s decision may be appealed in accordance with Section 10.068 of the 

Seaside Zoning Ordinance which states: 

Any action or ruling of the Planning Commission pursuant to this Ordinance may be appealed to the 

City Council within fifteen (15) days after the Notice of Decision is provided pursuant to Section 

10.066.  Written notice of the appeal shall be filed with the City Auditor. If the appeal is not filed (or 

postmarked) within the fifteen (15) day period, the decision of the Planning Commission shall be final. 

If the appeal is filed, the City Council shall receive a report and recommendation on it from the 

Planning Commission and shall hold a public hearing on the appeal. 

The appeal must be filed at the Planning Department (located at 1387 Ave. U) or mailed to 989 

Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138. The appeal must include the applicable fee of $625.00. 

If you have any questions regarding this decision or the appeal process, please contact the Community 

Development Department at (503)738-7100. The Notice of Decision date and appeal deadline are 

listed below. Appeals must be submitted or postmarked by this deadline.  

 

 

Date of Notice of Final Decision:   Wednesday, March 5, 2024 

Last Day to Appeal:    Thursday, March 21, 2024 

 

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Page | 2  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION: 

On March 5, 2024, the Seaside Planning Commission denied the above-referenced request and 

modified Condition 5 to allow for the removal of the first base line netting system from October 31 to 

February 1 each year as well as during forecasted significant weather events. The netting is required 

to be 40 feet tall and extend down the first baseline to the south end of the pitcher's bullpen.  

The Planning Commission’s final decision was supported by the Planning Commission's finding that 

the netting system is necessary to protect pedestrians from balls leaving the field of play utilizing the 

path between the west side of the softball field and the SEPRD building.  

Condition 5 was modified to state: 

 

Condition 5:  

The netting following the north fence line is to remain in place 365 days a year to protect the 

neighboring properties. The netting on the west side of the softball field is to be 40 feet tall and 

extend down the first base line to the south end of the pitcher’s bullpen. The first base line 

netting is permitted to be removed from October 31 to February 1 annually. All netting is 

permitted to be removed for the duration of a significant weather event.  

 

Although they are not conditions of approval, the following is a reminder to the applicant.  

• All necessary permits (such as structural, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, change of 

occupancy, etc.) must be obtained prior to development. 

• As with any permit, the applicant must meet all applicable standards in the Seaside Zoning 

Ordinance (e.g. erosion control, drainage, flood plain) that were not waived by this conditional 

use and meet any other applicable City of Seaside Ordinances. 

• The conditional use will become void one (1) year from the date of the decision unless the permit 

is utilized or an extension of time is approved in the manner prescribed under the Seaside 

Zoning Ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 3  
 

FINAL DECISION JUSTIFICATION SUMMARY: 

The Planning Commission’s final decision was supported by the Applicant’s submitted 

justification, the adopted information in the staff report, & any substantive testimony or 

evidence that was provided during the public hearing process. The staff report provided 

findings, justifications, conclusions & conditions to support the Commission’s final decision, 

subject to any modifications. If any information in the report was modified by the Commission 

prior to adoption by deleting, adding, or amending the findings, conditions, or conclusions; 

they are noted below.  

FINAL PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION MODIFICATION 

In addition to the original staff report’s findings, justification statements, and conclusions 

adopted by the Commission; the request was approved subject to the following amendments 

to the information included in the staff report: 

The Planning Commission expressed a need to remove the netting during a significant 

weather event in order to protect the netting’s integrity. The north fence line netting 

protects the neighboring residences from balls leaving the field of play and will need to 

remain in place year-round. The use of the fields and paths within the park is decreased 

during the winter months and the Planning Commission agreed to permit the removal of 

the first base line netting from October 31 to February 1 each year.  



03/08/24 769-24-000021-PLNG
03/12/24 06/11/24





$625.00

City Council

N/A

April 8, 2024



















 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

City of Seaside 
City Council Meeting Staff Report 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2024 
Author:  Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 
Department:   Community Development  
Subject:  Public Notice Street Vacation 
Type of Item:  Resolution 

Request:  
Pursuant to the purchase agreement for the Estuary Park, the seller is requesting the City 
of Seaside vacate a portion of 20th Avenue.  Approval of Resolution #4037 will set a date for 
a public hearing and direct staff to begin the street vacation process. Staff is requesting the 
City Council approve this resolution.  
 
Background: 
The City Council has the authority to vacate certain property or properties in the City of 
Seaside according to ORS Chapter 271 – Use and Disposition of Public Lands.  
 
The intent of Resolution #4037 is to direct the City Manager to initiate the street vacation 
process and to give public notice and set a date of hearing. The public hearings for the 
street vacation ordinance will take place on April 22, 2024, and on May 13, 2024. The public 
hearings will be advertised in the Daily Astorian and on the City of Seaside’s website.   
 
Staff Analysis: 
The City Council approves all resolutions and all vacations of certain property in the City of 
Seaside. The resolution initiates the street vacation process and directs the City Manager 
to give public notice and to set the date of the public hearing. An ordinance for the vacation 
of the aforementioned property will be considered by the City Council at a future City 
Council meeting. 
 
Budget Impact: 
There is no budget impact with the resolution.   
 
Requested Action: 
Staff request the City Council consider and discuss Resolution #4037.  
If the City Council is inclined to approve the resolution and initiate the street vacation 
process, a Councilor would state: 
 
“I move to approve Resolution #4037 by title only.” 
 
Followed by: 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution #4037.” 
 
Alternatives: 



Page | 2  
 

 The City Council may choose not to adopt Resolution #4037. There is no reason to 
continue with the public notice to vacate certain property.   

 
 
Attachments:  

 Resolution #4037 
 



 
RESOLUTION #4037 

 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO VACATE CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE 

CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
GIVE PUBLIC NOTICE AND SET A DATE OF HEARING 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Seaside has determined that the 
vacation of the hereinafter described property should be considered: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SEASIDE: 
 
SECTION 1.   The Seaside City Council intends to vacate the following described 
property, in the City of Seaside, County of Clatsop, State of Oregon: 
 
A portion of 20th Ave. that extends from N. Holladay Dr. east to the Necanicum 
River is depicted in the map below.  
 

 
 
SECTION 2.  That the City Manager be and is hereby directed to give notice as 
provided for in Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 271.  
 
SECTION 3.  That a hearing be held on the matter, as provided for by law, on the  
22nd day of April, 2024, and 13th day of May, 2024. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Seaside this         day of ____________, 
2024. 
 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor and APPROVED by the Mayor on this       day of 
_________, 2024. 
 
             
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 

 
 
Publish: April 6, 2024 
     April 11, 2024 












































	04.08.2024 City Council Agenda 
	Proclamations
	03.25.2024 City Council Minutes
	Ordinance 2024-05 City Council Meetings
	Liquor License Application 
	Public Hearing Seaside School District Appeal
	Resolution #4037 Public Notice Street Vacation
	Public Comment Submitted 04.08.2024

